Jefferson County Finance Committee Minutes June 13, 2013

Committee members: Braughler, James B. Hanneman, Jennifer Jones, Richard C. (Chair) Mode, Jim Molinaro, John

- 1. Call to order Richard Jones called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.
- Roll call (establish a quorum) All committee members were present. Staff in attendance was Kathi Cauley, Phil Ristow, Brian Lamers, Tammy Worzalla, Terri Palm, Roland Welsch, Bill Kern, Susan Happ. Others from the public included Jacob Lenell CPA, (CliftonGundersonAllen) and Lydia Statz, Jefferson Daily Union.
- **3.** Certification of compliance with the Open Meetings Law Kathi Cauley certified that notice of the meeting complied with the Open Meeting Law.
- 4. Review of the agenda No Changes
- 5. Citizen Comments None.
- 6. Approval of Finance Committee minutes for May 9, 2013. A motion was made by Mode/Braughler to approve the minutes of May 9, 2013 as drafted. The motion passed 4-0, Jennifer Hanneman abstained.
- 7. Communications None
- 8. Presentation From CliftonGundersonAllen, LLP. Jacob Lenell, CPA discussed the 2012 audit results and went through the highlights of the CAFR. He discussed the Governmental Funds, the Government-Wide Net Assets, Enterprise Fund and all disclosures. He discussed the auditor communications and other matters. No Management Letter was included this year since all prior year items on the previous Management Letter were addressed and corrected. Brian Lamers explained that the Audited CAFR will be passed out at the next County Board meeting and Jacob will present the highlights of the CAFR in August at the County Board meeting.
- **9.** Monthly Finance Report for Finance Department. Brian Lamers went through the April 2013 report. He explained that the expenditures are at 34.33% and the target should be about 33.33%. He explained that some of the expenditures are over such as the Auditor expense and registration because of paying now which will reduce expenses over the rest of the year.
- 10. Consider contingency fund transfer to MIS of up to \$7,376 to fund a (portion of the) HIPAA security analysis. Roland Welsch went over the need to have a security assessment done and passed out a handout with three quotes (Experis Financial-\$31,500, 403Blabs-

\$48,500 and Neohapsis-\$39,750). Roland explained that he would use funds that were for MS Office upgrade of \$24,124 (8501.531307) to fund a portions of it and the remainder would come from Land Information (1303.521219) with no need for a contingency transfer. A motion was made Molinaro/Mode to use the funds for MS Office to be used for the security analysis. The motion passed 5-0.

- **11. Discussion and possible action for contingency transfer of vested benefits for a retiring employee.** Susan Happ from the DA's office explained that the retiring employee is going to be taking vacation for approximately 2 months. Within the time of notice they would like to fill the position with 3 weeks of training for the new employee and retiree and then the retiree taking off for approximately 6 weeks of vacation and coming back one day in September. She is asking for transfer of \$20,000 (\$22,200 and cost to hire replacement for 2 week overlap of \$1,800, although there is a saving from a lower pay rate of \$4000). A motion was made by Molinaro/Hanneman to approve \$20,000 transfer out for contingency fund for vested benefits (9801.599908) to wages and benefits in the DA's budget. The motion passed 5-0. Also a discussion regarding Clerk of Courts department payout. There are 2 employees for a total of \$9,700 payout for the Clerk of Courts department. After a discussion on when these funds should be used and looking at a case by case basis, motion was made by Molinaro/Jones to fund up to \$9,700 at the end of the year if needed for salaries and benefit payouts. The motion passed 5-0.
- **12. Discussion on vehicle reporting.** Kathi Cauley passed out and discussed what departments have reported. Kathi stated that it still has to be brought up to departments that the county vehicles should be utilized more rather than reimbursement for personal vehicles. No action taken.
- 13. Discussion of funding for projects related to the Countryside purchase, demolition and cost related to the future Highway Facilities. Phil Ristow discussed where the process is at the current time. The RFP will be done for an outside company to do the bid documents for demolition of the old Countryside building. Brian Lamers explained that with the start of the 2014 budget we will have to look at how the possible bonding will impact the 2014 budget.
- **14. Review and Discussion regarding the 2014 Budget.** Brian Lamers explained that we are on track with the 2014 budget calendar. MIS prepared their budgets and we are reviewing them. The Administrator will have to approve the MIS budgets so we can allocate the charges to the other departments. The levy targets are looking to go out to the departments on June 19th.
- **15. Review and discussion on 2013 projections of budget vs. actual.** Brian Lamers explained that he will be starting to review the budget to actual reports that the departments are submitted to their reporting committees and I started receiving a copy. One area is the Sheriff department in slightly over budgeted percentages for the end of April but this could be caused by many variables.
- **16. Discussion and possible action on setting prices of foreclosed properties.** Phil Ristow explained the process and where we are in the process and the notice of sealed bids. The committee reviewed each property and put a price on each:

Parcel #181-0616-0341-017	\$2,800
Parcel #241-0611-0243-087	\$40,000
Parcel #241-0611-1131-026	Will be discussed with item #18 on agenda
Parcel #014-0614-2324-007	\$5,000

Parcel #012-0816-1014-002	\$50,000
Parcel #141-0711-1311-048	\$1,000
Parcel #024-0516-1234-007	\$1,000
Parcel #008-0715-1322-001	\$200

A motion was made by Mode/Braughler for setting the prices on the foreclosed properties above. The motion passed 5-0.

- **17.** Consider sale of tax foreclosed Garity Street property to the City of Jefferson. Discussion took place on property #241-0611-1131-026 and what price should be set to transfer the property to City of Jefferson. A motion was made by Molinaro/Hanneman to transfer the property to the City of Jefferson for \$1,357.34. The motion passed 5-0.
- 18. Consider sale of 1117 S. Main Street, Lake Mills to the City of Lake Mills upon completion of tax foreclosure. Phil Ristow explained there are taxes owed and would like to offer that property to the City of Lake Mills for back taxes and interest calculated from rates actually earned which is currently approximately \$18,500. A motion was made by Molinaro/Hanneman to offer to the City of Lake Mills the purchase of the property for approx. \$18,500. The motion passed 5-0.
- **19. Setting the preliminary dental rates for 2014 budget.** Brian Lamers and Tammy Worzalla explained that currently the amount is fairly good and recommended that we keep the same rates as 2013. A motion was made by Braughler/Mode to keep the same rates at 2013. The motion passed 5-0.
- **20. Update on contingency fund balance.** Brian Lamers directed the Finance Committee to the schedule showing the current balance of 2013 general contingency of \$347,125 the other contingency for wage increases current balance of \$102,290 and the vested benefits of \$265,000 will be reduced by item #11 approval to \$245,000.
- 21. Convene in closed session pursuant to §19.85 (1)(g) to discuss pending litigation with legal counsel. Motion was made by Molinaro /Hanneman to go into closed session. Roll call was taken and all voted to go into closed session.
- **22.** Reconvene in open session to authorize settlement of pending litigation. Motion was made by Molinaro/Hanneman to reconvene to open session. Motion was made by Molinaro/Hanneman to approve the settlement amount of \$33,770.29 from the fuel vendor's insurance company. The motion passed 5-0.
- **23.** Set future meeting schedule, next meeting date, and possible agenda items The next month's regular meeting is Thursday, July 11, 2013. Agenda items will include continued discussions on the 2014 budget, any 2013 budget to actual issues, final setting of rates for dental insurance and funding for future Highway facility projects.

Dick Jones had to leave the meeting and Jim Mode replaced him as Chair.

24. Payment of Invoices-After review of the invoices, a motion was made by Molinaro/Hanneman to approve the payment of invoices totaling \$976,491.04 and Fair Park Week of \$233,913.50. The motion passed 4-0.

25. Adjourn – A motion was made by Hanneman/Molinaro to adjourn at 11:05 a.m. The motion passed 4-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Jennifer Hanneman Finance Committee Jefferson County /bll